STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Bow River Capital Evergreen Fund

Class I Shares

Class II Shares

Dated July 31, 2023

c/o Bow River Advisers, LLC 205 Detroit Street, Suite 800 Denver, Colorado 80206 (303) 861-8466

This Statement of Additional Information ("SAI") is not a prospectus. This SAI relates to and should be read in conjunction with the prospectus (the "Prospectus") of Bow River Capital Evergreen Fund (the "Fund") dated July 31, 2023 as it may be further amended or supplemented from time to time. This SAI is incorporated by reference in its entirety into the Prospectus. The Fund's audited financial statements and financial highlights appearing in the Annual Report to Shareholders for the fiscal period ended March 31, 2023 (the "Annual Report") are incorporated by reference into this SAI. No other part of the Annual Report is incorporated by reference herein. A copy of the Prospectus may be obtained without charge by contacting the Fund at the telephone number or address set forth above.

This SAI is not an offer to sell shares of the Fund ("Shares") and is not soliciting an offer to buy the Shares in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein have the same meaning set forth in the Prospectus.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
INVESTMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES	1
FUNDAMENTAL POLICIES	2
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES OF THE FUND AND THE RELATED RISKS	4
BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS	12
CODES OF ETHICS	18
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AND OTHER SERVICES	19
PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS AND BROKERAGE ALLOCATION	23
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM; LEGAL COUNSEL	24
CUSTODIAN	24
CALCULATION OF NET ASSET VALUE	24
PROXY VOTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES	24
CONTROL PERSONS AND PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS	25
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	26
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	26
APPENDIX A	A-1

INVESTMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES

The investment objective and the principal investment strategies of the Fund, as well as the principal risks associated with such investment strategies, are set forth in the Prospectus. Certain additional information regarding the investment program of the Fund is set forth below.

FUNDAMENTAL POLICIES

The Fund's fundamental policies, which are listed below, may only be changed by the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund. At the present time the Shares are the only outstanding voting securities of the Fund. As defined by the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "Investment Company Act"), the vote of a "majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund" means the vote, at an annual or special meeting of the common shareholders of the Fund (the "Common Shareholders"), duly called, (i) of 67% or more of the Shares represented at such meeting, if the holders of more than 50% of the outstanding Shares are present in person or represented by proxy or (ii) of more than 50% of the outstanding Shares, whichever is less. No other policy is a fundamental policy of the Fund, except as expressly stated. The Fund may not:

- 1) Issue any senior security, except to the extent permitted by Section 18 of the Investment Company Act, as interpreted, modified, or otherwise permitted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") or any other applicable authority.
- 2) Borrow money, except to the extent permitted by Section 18 of the Investment Company Act, as interpreted, modified, or otherwise permitted by the SEC or any other applicable authority. This investment restriction does not apply to borrowings from affiliated investment companies or other affiliated persons of the Fund to the extent permitted by the Investment Company Act, the SEC or any other applicable authority.
- 3) Underwrite securities of other issuers, except insofar as the Fund may be deemed to be an underwriter under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), in connection with the disposition of its portfolio securities.
- 4) Make loans, except through purchasing fixed-income securities (including whole loans, whether senior or subordinated, "Payment-In-Kind" or "PIK" securities, other mezzanine securities or participations in any of the foregoing), lending portfolio securities, or entering into repurchase agreements in a manner consistent with the investment policies of the Fund, or as otherwise permitted under the Investment Company Act. This investment restriction does not apply to loans to affiliated investment companies or other affiliated persons of the Fund to the extent permitted by the Investment Company Act, the SEC or any other applicable authority.
- 5) Purchase, hold, deal in or sell real estate, except as permitted under the Investment Company Act, and as interpreted, modified, or otherwise permitted by regulatory authority having jurisdiction, from time to time.
- 6) Invest in commodities and commodity contracts, except that the Fund (i) may purchase and sell non-U.S. currencies, options, swaps, futures and forward contracts, including those related to indexes, options and options on indexes, as well as other financial instruments and contracts that are commodities or commodity contracts, (ii) may also purchase or sell commodities if acquired as a result of ownership of securities or other instruments, (iii) may invest in commodity pools and other entities that purchase and sell commodities and commodity contracts, and (iv) may make such investments as otherwise permitted by the Investment Company Act.
- 7) Invest 25% or more of the value of its total assets in the securities of issuers that Bow River Advisers, LLC (the "Adviser") determines are engaged in any single industry or group of industries, except that U.S. government securities and repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. government securities may be purchased without limitation. The Fund may invest in Portfolio Funds that may concentrate their assets in one or more industries or group of industries. The Fund will not invest 25% or more of its assets in a Portfolio Fund or Funds, in aggregate, that it knows concentrates its assets in a single industry.\(^1\)

With respect to these investment restrictions and other policies described in this SAI or the Prospectus (except the Fund's policy on borrowings, Fundamental Restriction (2) set forth above), if a percentage restriction is adhered to at the time of an investment or transaction, a later change in percentage resulting from a change in the values of investments or the value of the Fund's total assets, unless otherwise stated, will not constitute a violation of such

¹ The Fund will consider the investments of any affiliated and unaffiliated underlying investment companies when determining whether the Fund is in compliance with its concentration policies.

restriction or policy. The Adviser will use the Global Industry Classification Standard (*i.e.* GICS) to classify industries. GICS presents industry classifications as a series of levels (e.g. sector, industry group, industry and sub-industry). The Fund's investment policies and restrictions do not apply to the activities and the transactions of the closed-end private funds ("Portfolio Funds") in which the Fund invests, but will apply to investments made by the Fund directly (or any account consisting solely of the Fund's assets).

Under Section 18 of the Investment Company Act, the Fund is not permitted to borrow for any purposes if, immediately after such borrowing, the Fund would have asset coverage (as defined in the Investment Company Act) of less than 300% with respect to indebtedness or less than 200% with respect to preferred stock. The Investment Company Act also provides that the Fund may not declare distributions or purchase its Shares (including through repurchase offers) if, immediately after doing so, it will have an asset coverage of less than 300% or 200%, as applicable. The Fund does not have the exemptive relief required to allow it to borrow from affiliated investment companies or other affiliated persons of the Fund.

In addition to the above, the Fund has adopted a fundamental policy to conduct semi-annual repurchase offers at net asset value ("NAV"). Therefore, every six months, the Fund will conduct repurchases at per-class NAV per Share of no less than 5% of the outstanding Shares of the Fund ("Required Repurchases"), unless such offer is suspended or postponed in accordance with regulatory requirements. The offer to conduct Required Repurchases is a fundamental policy that may not be changed without the vote of the holders of a majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities (as defined in the Investment Company Act).

The Adviser also anticipates recommending to the Board that, under normal market circumstances, the Fund conduct repurchase offers of no more than 5% of the Fund's net assets generally for each calendar quarter following a Required Repurchase (each, a "Discretionary Repurchase"). While the Board may consider the recommendation of the Adviser and anticipates that each Discretionary Repurchase will be offered for each calendar quarter following a Required Repurchase (*i.e.* twice per year), any Discretionary Repurchase of Shares will be made at such times and on such terms as may be determined by the Board from time to time in its sole discretion.

The investment objective of the Fund is not a fundamental policy of the Fund and may be changed by the Board of Trustees of the Fund (the "Board") without the vote of a majority (as defined by the Investment Company Act) of the Fund's outstanding Shares. The Fund's fundamental policies, which are listed above, may only be changed by the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES OF THE FUND AND THE RELATED RISKS

As discussed in the Prospectus, the Fund may gain access to private assets through a number of different approaches including: (i) direct investments in the equity or debt of operating companies ("Direct Equity Investments" or "Direct Credit Investments," respectively, and together, "Direct Investments"); (ii) secondary purchases of interests in closed-end private funds ("Portfolio Funds") managed by third-party managers ("Portfolio Fund Managers"); (iii) primary fund commitments; (iv) direct or secondary purchases of liquid credit instruments; (v) other liquid investments, including listed private equity and ETFs; and (vi) short-term investments, including money market funds and short term treasuries. The Fund may gain such exposure through a direct investment in the targeted investment entity or indirectly through pooled vehicles or special purpose vehicles managed by the Adviser, any of its affiliates or third parties. This section provides additional information about various types of investments and investment techniques that may be employed by the Fund or by Portfolio Funds in which the Fund invests. Many of the investments and techniques described in this section may be based in part on the existence of a public market for the relevant securities. To that extent, such investments and techniques are not expected to represent the principal investments or techniques of the majority of the Fund or of the Portfolio Funds; however, there is no limit on the types of investments the Portfolio Funds may make and certain Portfolio Funds may use such investments or techniques extensively. Similarly, there are few limits on the types of investments the Fund may make. Accordingly, the descriptions in this section cannot be comprehensive. Any decision to invest in the Fund should take into account (i) the possibility that the Portfolio Funds may make virtually any kind of investment, (ii) that the Fund has similarly broad latitude in the kinds of investments it may make (subject to the fundamental policies described above) and (iii) that all such investments will be subject to related risks, which can be substantial.

Equity Securities

The Fund's and/or a Portfolio Fund's portfolio may include investments in common stocks, preferred stocks, and convertible securities of U.S. and foreign issuers. The Fund and/or a Portfolio Fund also may invest in depositary receipts relating to foreign securities. Equity securities fluctuate in value, often based on factors unrelated to the value of the issuer of the securities. Given the private equity focus of the Fund, there is expected to be no liquid market for a majority of such investments.

Common Stock

Common stock or other common equity issued by a corporation or other entity generally entitles the holder to a pro rata share of the profits, if any, of the entity without preference over any other shareholder or claims of shareholders, after making required payments to holders of the entity's preferred stock and other senior equity. Common stock usually carries with it the right to vote and frequently an exclusive right to do so.

Preferred Stock

Preferred stock or other preferred equity generally has a preference as to dividends and, in the event of liquidation, to an issuer's assets, over the issuer's common stock or other common equity, but it ranks junior to debt securities in an issuer's capital structure. Preferred stock generally pays dividends in cash or additional shares of preferred stock at a defined rate but, unlike interest payments on debt securities, preferred stock dividends are generally payable only if declared by the issuer's board of directors. Dividends on preferred stock may be cumulative, meaning that, in the event the issuer fails to make one or more dividend payments on the preferred stock, no dividends may be paid on the issuer's common stock until all unpaid preferred stock dividends have been paid. Preferred stock may also be subject to optional or mandatory redemption provisions.

Convertible Securities

Convertible securities are bonds, debentures, notes, preferred stock, or other securities that may be converted into or exchanged for a specified amount of common equity of the same or different issuer within a specified period of time at a specified price or based on a specified formula. In many cases, a convertible security entitles the holder to receive interest or a dividend that is generally paid or accrued until the convertible security matures or is redeemed, converted or exchanged. Convertible securities have unique investment characteristics in that they generally (i) have higher yields (i.e., rates of interest or dividends) than common stocks, but lower yields than comparable non-convertible

securities, (ii) are less subject to fluctuation in value than the underlying common stock into which they are convertible due to their fixed-income characteristics and (iii) provide the potential for capital appreciation if the market price of the underlying common stock increases. The Fund's and/or the Portfolio Funds' investments in convertible securities are expected to primarily be in private convertible securities, but may be in public convertible securities.

The value of a convertible security is primarily a function of its "investment value" (determined by its yield in comparison with the yields of other securities of comparable maturity and quality that do not have a conversion privilege) and its "conversion value" (determined by reference to the security's anticipated worth, at market value, if converted into the underlying common stock). The investment value of a convertible security is influenced by changes in interest rates, with investment value typically declining as interest rates increase and increasing as interest rates decline. The credit standing of the issuer and other factors may also increase or decrease the convertible security's value. If the conversion value is low relative to the investment value, the convertible security is valued principally by reference to its investment value. To the extent the value of the underlying common stock approaches or exceeds the conversion value, the convertible security will be valued increasingly by reference to its conversion value. Generally, the conversion value decreases as the convertible security approaches maturity. Where no market exists for a convertible security and/or the underlying common stock, such investments may be difficult to value. A public convertible security generally will sell at a premium over its conversion value by the extent to which investors place value on the right to acquire the underlying common stock while holding a fixed-income security.

A convertible security may in some cases be subject to redemption at the option of the issuer at a price established in the convertible security's governing instrument. If a convertible security is called for redemption, the holder will generally have a choice of tendering the security for redemption, converting it into common stock prior to redemption, or selling it to a third party. Any of these actions could have a material adverse effect and result in losses to the Fund.

Derivative Instruments

Although not a principal investment strategy, the Fund or the Portfolio Funds may use financial instruments known as derivatives. A derivative is generally defined as an instrument whose value is derived from, or based upon, some underlying index, reference rate (such as interest rates or currency exchange rates), security, commodity or other asset. Following are descriptions of certain derivatives that the Portfolio Funds may use. The same descriptions apply to the Fund, mutatis mutandis, to the extent that it engages in derivatives transactions. Certain risks associated with derivatives are described under "INVESTMENT RELATED RISKS — Derivative Instruments" in the Prospectus.

The Adviser with respect to the Fund has filed a notice of eligibility for an exclusion from the definition of the term "commodity pool operator" with the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the "CFTC") and the National Futures Association (the "NFA"), which regulate trading in the futures markets. Pursuant to CFTC Regulation 4.5, the Adviser and the Fund are not subject to regulation as a commodity pool or commodity pool operator under the CEA. If the Adviser or the Fund becomes subject to these requirements, as well as related NFA rules, the Fund may incur additional compliance and other expenses.

Options and Futures

A Portfolio Fund may utilize options contracts, futures contracts, and options on futures contracts. It also may use so-called "synthetic" options or other derivative instruments written by broker-dealers or other financial intermediaries. Options transactions may be effected on securities exchanges or in the over-the-counter market. When options are purchased over-the-counter, the Portfolio Fund's portfolio bears the risk that the counterparty that wrote the option will be unable or unwilling to perform its obligations under the option contract. Such options may also be illiquid, and, in such cases, a Portfolio Fund may have difficulty closing out its position. Over-the-counter options purchased and sold by the Portfolio Fund also may include options on baskets of specific securities.

A Portfolio Fund may purchase call and put options on specific securities or currencies and may write and sell covered or uncovered call and put options for hedging purposes and non-hedging purposes to pursue its investment objective. A put option gives the purchaser of the option the right to sell, and obligates the writer to buy, the underlying security at a stated exercise price at any time prior to the expiration of the option. A call option gives the purchaser of the option the right to buy, and obligates the writer to sell, the underlying security at a stated exercise price at any time prior to the expiration of the option.

A covered call option is a call option with respect to which a Portfolio Fund owns the underlying security. The sale of such an option exposes the Portfolio Fund, during the term of the option, to possible loss of opportunity to realize appreciation in the market price of the underlying security and to the possibility that it might hold the underlying security in order to protect against depreciation in the market price of the security during a period when it might have otherwise sold the security. The seller of a covered call option assumes the risk of a decline in the market price of the underlying security below the purchase price of the underlying security less the premium received and gives up the opportunity for gain on the underlying security above the exercise price of the option. The seller of an uncovered call option assumes the risk of a theoretically unlimited increase in the market price of the underlying security above the exercise price of the option.

A covered put option is a put option with respect to which the seller has a short position in the underlying security. The seller of a covered put option assumes the risk of an increase in the market price of the underlying security above the sales price (in establishing the short position) of the underlying security plus the premium received and gives up the opportunity for gain on the underlying security below the exercise price of the option. If the seller of the put option owns a put option covering an equivalent number of shares with an exercise price equal to or greater than the exercise price of the put written, the position is "fully hedged" if the option owned expires at the same time or later than the option written. The seller of an uncovered put option assumes the risk of a decline in the market price of the underlying security below the exercise price of the option. The seller of a put option may also be required to place cash or liquid securities in a segregated account to ensure compliance with its obligation to purchase the underlying security. The sale of such an option exposes the Portfolio Fund during the term of the option to a decline in price of the underlying security while depriving the Portfolio Fund of the opportunity to invest the segregated assets.

A Portfolio Fund may close out a position when writing options by purchasing an option on the same security with the same exercise price and expiration date as the option that it has previously written on the security. The Portfolio Fund will realize a profit or loss if the amount paid to purchase an option is less or more, as the case may be, than the amount received from the sale thereof. To close out a position as a purchaser of an option, the Portfolio Fund would generally make a similar "closing sale transaction," which involves liquidating its position by selling the option previously purchased. However, if deemed advantageous, the Portfolio Fund would be entitled to exercise the option.

A Portfolio Fund may enter into stock futures contracts, interest rate futures contracts, and currency futures contracts in U.S. domestic markets or on exchanges located outside the United States. Foreign markets may offer advantages such as trading opportunities or arbitrage possibilities not available in the United States. Foreign markets, however, may have greater risk potential than domestic markets. For example, some foreign exchanges are principal markets so that no common clearing facility exists, and an investor may look only to the broker for performance of the contract. Transactions on foreign exchanges may include both commodities that are traded on domestic exchanges and those that are not. Unlike trading on domestic commodity exchanges, trading on foreign commodity exchanges is not regulated by the CFTC. Therefore, the CFTC does not have the power to compel enforcement of the rules of the foreign exchange or the laws of the foreign country. Moreover, such laws or regulations will vary depending on the foreign country in which the transaction occurs. For these reasons, the Portfolio Funds may not be afforded certain of the protections that apply to domestic transactions, including the right to use domestic alternative dispute resolution procedures. In particular, funds received from customers to margin foreign futures transactions may not be provided the same protections as funds received to margin futures transactions on domestic exchanges. In addition, the price of any foreign futures or option contract and, therefore, the potential profit and loss resulting from that contract, may be affected by any fluctuation in the foreign exchange rate between the time the order is placed and the foreign futures contract is liquidated or the foreign option contract is liquidated or exercised.

In addition to futures contracts traded on U.S. domestic markets or exchanges that are regulated by the CFTC or on foreign exchanges, Portfolio Funds may also trade certain futures either over-the-counter or on trading facilities such as derivatives transaction execution facilities, exempt boards of trade or electronic trading facilities that are licensed and/or regulated to varying degrees by the CFTC. In addition, certain single stock futures and narrow-based security index futures may be traded over-the-counter or on trading facilities such as contract markets, derivatives transaction execution facilities and electronic trading facilities that are licensed and/or regulated to varying degrees by both the CFTC and the SEC or on foreign exchanges.

Trading in futures involves risk of loss to the Portfolio Fund that could materially adversely affect the net asset value of the Fund. No assurance can be given that a liquid market will exist for any particular futures contract at any particular time. Many futures exchanges and boards of trade limit the amount of fluctuation permitted in futures contract prices

during a single trading day by regulations referred to as "daily price fluctuation limits" or "daily limits." Once the daily limit has been reached in a particular contract, no trades may be made that day at a price beyond that limit or trading may be suspended for specified periods during the trading day. Futures contract prices could move to the limit for several consecutive trading days with little or no trading, thereby preventing prompt liquidation of futures positions and potentially subjecting the Portfolio Fund to substantial losses, which may result in losses to the Fund. In addition, the CFTC and various exchanges impose speculative position limits on the number of positions that each Portfolio Fund may indirectly hold or control in certain particular futures or options contracts. Many of the major U.S. exchanges have eliminated speculative position limits and have substituted position accountability rules that would permit the Portfolio Funds to trade without restriction as long as such Portfolio Funds can demonstrate the positions acquired were not acquired for the purpose of manipulating the market.

Successful use of futures by a Portfolio Fund depends on its ability to correctly predict movements in the direction of the relevant market, and, to the extent the transaction is entered into for hedging purposes, to ascertain the appropriate correlation between the transaction being hedged and the price movements of the futures contract.

The prices of all derivative instruments, including futures and options prices, are highly volatile. Price movements of forward contracts, futures contracts, and other derivative contracts in which a Portfolio Fund may invest are influenced by, among other things: interest rates; changing supply and demand relationships; trade, fiscal, monetary, and exchange control programs and policies of governments; and national and international political and economic events and policies. In addition, governments from time to time intervene, directly and by regulation, in certain markets, particularly those currencies and interest rate-related futures and options. Such intervention often is intended directly to influence prices and may, together with other factors, cause all of such markets to move rapidly in the same direction because of, among other things, interest rate fluctuations. Portfolio Funds are also subject to the risk of the failure of any of the exchanges on which their positions trade or of their clearinghouses.

A stock index future obligates a Portfolio Fund to pay, or entitles it to receive, an amount of cash equal to a fixed dollar amount specified in the futures contract multiplied by the difference between the settlement price of the contract on the contract's last trading day and the value of the index based on the stock prices of the securities that comprise it at the opening of trading in such securities on the next business day. An interest rate future obligates a Portfolio Fund to purchase or sell an amount of a specific debt security at a future date at a specific price. A currency future obligates a Portfolio Fund to purchase or sell an amount of a specific currency at a future date at a specific price.

Call and Put Options on Securities Indexes

A Portfolio Fund may purchase and sell call and put options on stock indexes listed on national securities exchanges or traded in the over-the-counter market for hedging and non-hedging purposes to pursue its investment objectives. A stock index fluctuates with changes in the market values of the stocks included in the index. Accordingly, successful use by a Portfolio Fund of options on stock indexes will be subject to the ability to correctly predict movements in the direction of the stock market generally or of a particular industry or market segment. This requires different skills and techniques than predicting changes in the price of individual stocks.

Yield Curve Options

A Portfolio Fund may enter into options on the yield "spread" or differential between two securities. Such transactions are referred to as "yield curve" options. In contrast to other types of options, a yield curve option is based on the difference between the yields of designated securities, rather than the prices of the individual securities, and is settled through cash payments. Accordingly, a yield curve option is profitable to the holder if this differential widens (in the case of a call) or narrows (in the case of a put), regardless of whether the yields of the underlying securities increase or decrease. The trading of yield curve options is subject to all of the risks associated with the trading of other types of options. In addition, such options present a risk of loss even if the yield of one of the underlying securities remains constant, or if the spread moves in a direction or to an extent which was not anticipated.

Rights and Warrants

A Portfolio Fund may invest in rights and warrants. Rights (sometimes referred to as "subscription rights") and warrants may be purchased separately or may be received as part of a distribution in respect of, or may be attached to, other securities that a Portfolio Fund has purchased. Rights and warrants are securities that give the holder the right, but not the obligation, to purchase equity securities of the company issuing the rights or warrants, or a related

company, at a fixed price either on a date certain or during a set period. Typically, rights have a relatively short term (e.g., two to four weeks), whereas warrants can have much longer terms. At the time of issue, the cost of a right or warrant is substantially less than the cost of the underlying security itself.

Particularly in the case of warrants, price movements in the underlying security are generally magnified in the price movements of the warrant. This effect would enable a Portfolio Fund to gain exposure to the underlying security with a relatively low capital investment but increases the Portfolio Fund's risk in the event of a decline in the value of the underlying security and can result in a complete loss of the amount invested in the warrant. In addition, the price of a warrant tends to be more volatile than, and may not correlate exactly to, the price of the underlying security. If the market price of the underlying security is below the exercise price of the warrant on its expiration date, the warrant will generally expire without value. The equity security underlying a warrant is authorized at the time the warrant is issued or is issued together with the warrant, which may result in losses to the Fund. Investing in warrants can provide a greater potential for profit or loss than an equivalent investment in the underlying security, and, thus, can be a speculative investment. The value of a warrant may decline because of a decline in the value of the underlying security, the passage of time, changes in interest rates or in the dividend or other policies of the company whose equity underlies the warrant or a change in the perception as to the future price of the underlying security, or any combination thereof. Warrants and rights do not carry with them the right to dividends or voting rights with respect to the securities that they entitle the holder to purchase, and they do not represent any rights in the assets of the issuer.

Swaps

A Portfolio Fund may enter into equity, interest rate, index, currency rate, total return and/or other types of swap agreements. These transactions are entered into in an attempt to obtain a particular return when it is considered desirable to do so, possibly at a lower cost than if a Portfolio Fund had invested directly in the asset that yielded the desired return. Swap agreements are two-party contracts entered into primarily by institutional investors for periods ranging from a few weeks to more than a year. In a standard swap transaction, two parties agree to exchange the returns (or differentials in rates of return) earned or realized on particular predetermined investments or instruments, which may be adjusted for an interest factor. The gross returns to be exchanged or "swapped" between the parties are generally calculated with respect to a "notional amount" (i.e., the return on or increase in value of a particular dollar amount invested at a particular interest rate, in a particular foreign currency, or in a "basket" of securities representing a particular index).

Interest Rate, Mortgage and Credit Swaps

A Portfolio Fund may enter into interest rate swaps. Forms of swap agreements include interest rate caps, under which, in return for a premium, one party agrees to make payments to the other to the extent interest rates exceed a specified rate or "cap"; interest rate floors, under which, in return for a premium, one party agrees to make payments to the other to the extent interest rates fall below a specified level or "floor"; and interest rate collars, under which a party sells a cap and purchases a floor or vice versa in an attempt to protect itself against interest rate movements exceeding given minimum or maximum levels. Mortgage swaps are similar to interest rate swaps in that they represent commitments to pay and receive interest. The notional principal amount, however, is tied to a reference pool or pools of mortgages. Credit swaps involve the receipt of floating or fixed note payments in exchange for assuming potential credit losses on an underlying security. Credit swaps give one party to a transaction the right to dispose of or acquire an asset (or group of assets), or the right to receive a payment from the other party, upon the occurrence of specified credit events.

Equity Index Swaps

A Portfolio Fund may enter into equity index swaps. Equity index swaps involve the exchange by a Portfolio Fund with another party of cash flows based upon the performance of an index or a portion of an index of securities that usually includes dividends. A Portfolio Fund may purchase cash-settled options on equity index swaps. A cash-settled option on a swap gives the purchaser the right, but not the obligation, in return for the premium paid, to receive an amount of cash equal to the value of the underlying swap as of the exercise date. These options typically are purchased in privately negotiated transactions from financial institutions, including securities brokerage firms.

Currency Swaps

A Portfolio Fund may enter into currency swaps for both hedging and non-hedging purposes. Currency swaps involve the exchange of rights to make or receive payments in specified foreign currencies. Currency swaps usually involve the delivery of the entire principal value of one designated currency in exchange for another designated currency. Therefore, the entire principal value of a currency swap is subject to the risk that the other party to the swap will default on its contractual delivery obligations. The use of currency swaps is a highly specialized activity that involves special investment techniques and risks. Incorrect forecasts of market values and currency exchange rates can materially adversely affect the Portfolio Fund's performance. If there is a default by the other party to such a transaction, the Portfolio Fund will have contractual remedies pursuant to the agreements related to the transaction.

Total Return Swaps

A Portfolio Fund may enter into total return swaps. In a total return swap, one party pays a rate of interest in exchange for the total rate of return on another investment. For example, if a Portfolio Fund wished to invest in a senior loan, it could instead enter into a total return swap and receive the total return of the senior loan, less the "funding cost," which would be a floating interest rate payment to the counterparty.

Swaptions

A Portfolio Fund may also purchase and write (sell) options contracts on swaps, commonly referred to as "swaptions." A swaption is an option to enter into a swap agreement. Like other types of options, the buyer of a swaption pays a non-refundable premium for the option and obtains the right, but not the obligation, to enter into an underlying swap on agreed-upon terms. The seller of a swaption, in exchange for the premium, becomes obligated (if the option is exercised) to enter into an underlying swap on agreed-upon terms.

Certain swap agreements into which a Portfolio Fund enters may require the calculation of the obligations of the parties to the agreements on a "net basis." Consequently, the Portfolio Fund's current obligations (or rights) under such swap agreements generally will be equal only to the net amount to be paid or received under the agreement based on the relative values of the positions held by each party to the agreement (the "net amount"). The risk of loss with respect to swaps consists of the net amount of the payments that the Portfolio Fund is contractually obligated to make. If the other party to a swap defaults, the Portfolio Fund's risk of loss consists of the net amount of the payments that the Portfolio Fund contractually is entitled to receive.

Forward Contracts

A forward contract is an agreement between two parties in which one party is obligated to deliver a stated amount of a stated asset at a specified time in the future and the other party is obligated to pay a specified amount for the asset at the time of delivery. The Fund may enter into forward contracts to purchase and sell government securities, income securities, or foreign currencies. Forward contracts generally are traded in an interbank market conducted directly between traders (usually large commercial banks) and their customers. Unlike futures contracts, which are standardized contracts, forward contracts can be specifically drawn to meet the needs of the parties that enter into them. The parties to a forward contract may agree to offset or terminate the contract before its maturity, or may hold the contract to maturity and complete the contemplated exchange.

The following discussion summarizes the Fund's possible uses of forward foreign currency exchange contracts ("forward currency contracts"). The Fund may enter into forward currency contracts with stated contract values of up to 10% of the value of the Fund's net assets. A forward currency contract is an obligation to buy or sell an amount of a specified currency for an agreed price (which may be in U.S. dollars or a foreign currency). The Fund may invest in forward currency contracts for non-hedging purposes such as seeking to enhance return. The Fund may exchange foreign currencies for U.S. dollars and for other foreign currencies in the normal course of business and may buy and sell currencies through forward currency contracts in order to fix a price for securities it has agreed to buy or sell ("transaction hedge"). The Fund also may hedge some or all of its investments denominated in a foreign currency or exposed to foreign currency fluctuations against a decline in the value of that currency relative to the U.S. dollar by entering into forward currency contracts to sell an amount of that currency (or a proxy currency whose performance is expected to replicate or exceed the performance of that currency relative to the U.S. dollar) approximating the value of some or all of its portfolio securities denominated in or exposed to that currency ("position hedge").

These types of hedging minimize the effect of currency appreciation as well as depreciation, but do not eliminate fluctuations in the underlying U.S. dollar equivalent value of the proceeds of or rates of return on the Fund's foreign currency denominated portfolio securities. The matching of the increase in value of a forward contract and the decline in the U.S. dollar equivalent value of the foreign currency denominated asset that is the subject of the hedge generally will not be precise. Shifting the Fund's currency exposure from one foreign currency to another removes the Fund's opportunity to profit from increases in the value of the original currency and involves a risk of increased losses to the Fund if the portfolio manager's projection of future exchange rates is inaccurate. Proxy hedges and cross-hedges may protect against losses resulting from a decline in the hedged currency, but will cause the Fund to assume the risk of fluctuations in the value of the currency it purchases which may result in losses if the currency used to hedge does not perform similarly to the currency in which hedged securities are denominated. Unforeseen changes in currency prices may result in poorer overall performance for the Fund than if it had not entered into such contracts.

Pursuant to Rule 18f-4, under the 1940 Act, the Fund does not exchange collateral for its forward contracts with its counterparties or segregated cash or liquid assets with its custodian. While forward contracts are not currently regulated by the CFTC, the CFTC may in the future assert authority to regulate forward contracts. In such event, the Fund's ability to utilize forward contracts may be restricted. In addition, the Fund may not always be able to enter into forward contracts at attractive prices and may be limited in its ability to use these contracts to hedge Fund assets.

Distressed Securities

The Fund or a Portfolio Fund may invest in debt or equity securities of domestic and foreign issuers in weak financial condition, experiencing poor operating results, having substantial capital needs or negative net worth, facing special competitive or product obsolescence problems, or that are involved in bankruptcy or reorganization proceedings. Investments of this type may involve substantial financial and business risks that can result in substantial or at times even total losses. Among the risks inherent in investments in troubled entities is the fact that it frequently may be difficult to obtain information as to the true condition of such issuers. Such investments also may be adversely affected by state and federal laws relating to, among other things, fraudulent transfers and other voidable transfers or payments, lender liability, and a bankruptcy court's power to disallow, reduce, subordinate, or disenfranchise particular claims. The market prices of such securities are also subject to abrupt and erratic market movements and above-average price volatility, and the spread between the bid and ask prices of such securities may be greater than those prevailing in other securities markets. It may take a number of years for the market price of such securities to reflect their intrinsic value. In liquidation (both in and out of bankruptcy) and other forms of corporate reorganization, there exists the risk that the reorganization either will be unsuccessful (due to, for example, failure to obtain requisite approvals), will be delayed (for example, until various liabilities, actual or contingent, have been satisfied), or will result in a distribution of cash or a new security the value of which will be less than the purchase price to the Portfolio Fund of the security in respect to which such distribution was made.

Repurchase Agreements

Repurchase agreements involve the purchase of securities subject to the seller's agreement to repurchase them at a mutually agreed upon date and price. The Fund may enter into repurchase agreements with securities dealers and banks that furnish collateral at least equal in value or market price to the amount of its repurchase obligation.

If the other party or "seller" defaults or becomes insolvent, the Fund might suffer a loss to the extent that the proceeds from the sale of the underlying securities and other collateral held by the Fund are less than the repurchase price and the Fund's cost associated with delay and enforcement of the repurchase agreement. In addition, in the event of bankruptcy of the seller, the Fund could suffer additional losses if a court determines that the Fund's interest in the collateral is not enforceable.

Additional Method of Investing in a Portfolio Fund

The Fund will typically invest directly in a Portfolio Fund by purchasing an interest in such Portfolio Fund. There may be situations, however, where a Portfolio Fund is not open or available for direct investment by the Fund or where the Adviser elects for other reasons to invest indirectly in a Portfolio Fund (including, without limitation, restrictions of the Investment Company Act). On occasions where the Adviser determines that an indirect investment is the most effective or efficient means of gaining exposure to a Portfolio Fund, the Fund may invest in a Portfolio Fund indirectly, such as by purchasing a structured note or entering into a swap or other contract paying a return tied to the return of

a Portfolio Fund. In the case of a structured note or a swap, a counterparty would agree to pay to the Fund a return based on the return of the Portfolio Fund, in exchange for consideration paid by the Fund equivalent to the cost of purchasing an ownership interest in the Portfolio Fund. Indirect investment through a swap or similar contract in a Portfolio Fund carries with it the credit risk associated with the counterparty. Indirect investments will generally be subject to transaction and other fees, which will reduce the value of the Fund's investment. There can be no assurance that the Fund's indirect investment in a Portfolio Fund will have the same or similar results as a direct investment in the Portfolio Fund, and the Fund's value may decrease as a result of such indirect investment. When the Fund makes an indirect investment in a Portfolio Fund by investing in a structured note, swap, or other contract intended to pay a return equal to the total return of such Portfolio Fund, such investment by the Fund may be subject to additional regulations.

Pandemic Risk

In early 2020, an outbreak of a novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) emerged globally. The outbreak of COVID-19 and its variants resulted in closing international borders, enhanced health screenings, healthcare service preparation and delivery, quarantines, cancellations, disruptions to supply chains and customer activity, as well as general public concern and uncertainty. This outbreak negatively affected the worldwide economy, as well as the economies of individual countries, the financial health of individual companies and the market in general in significant and unforeseen ways. On May 5, 2023, the World Health Organization declared the end of the global emergency status for COVID-19. The United States subsequently ended the federal COVID-19 public health emergency declaration effective May 11, 2023. Although vaccines for COVID-19 are widely available, it is unknown how long certain circumstances related to the pandemic will persist, whether they will reoccur in the future, and what additional implications may follow from the pandemic. The impact of these events and other epidemics or pandemics in the future could adversely affect Fund performance.

Cyber Security Risk

The Fund and its service providers may be prone to operational and information security risks resulting from breaches in cyber security. A breach in cyber security refers to both intentional and unintentional events that may cause the Fund to lose proprietary information, suffer data corruption, or lose operational capacity. Breaches in cyber security include, among other behaviors, stealing or corrupting data maintained online or digitally, denial of service attacks on websites, the unauthorized release of confidential information or various other forms of cyber-attacks. Cyber security breaches affecting the Fund, the Adviser, financial intermediaries and other third-party service providers may adversely impact the Fund. For instance, cyber security breaches may interfere with the processing of shareholder transactions, impact the Fund's ability to calculate its net asset value, cause the release of private shareholder information or confidential business information, impede investment activities, subject the Fund to regulatory fines or financial losses and/or cause reputational damage. The Fund may also incur additional costs for cyber security risk management purposes. Similar types of cyber security risks are also present for the issuers of securities in which the Fund may invest, which could result in material adverse consequences for such issuers and may cause the Fund to lose value. The Fund and the Adviser have limited ability to prevent or mitigate cybersecurity incidents affecting third party service providers, and such third-party service providers may have limited indemnification obligations to the Fund or the Adviser. Furthermore, cyber security risks are also present for issuers of the securities in which the Fund invests, which could result in material adverse consequences for such issuers, and may cause the Fund's investment in such securities to lose value.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS

The business operations of the Fund are managed and supervised under the direction of the Board, subject to the laws of the State of Delaware and the Fund's agreement and declaration of trust ("Declaration of Trust"). The Board has overall responsibility for the management and supervision of the business affairs of the Fund on behalf of its Common Shareholders, including the authority to establish policies regarding the management, conduct and operation of its business. The Board exercises the same powers, authority and responsibilities on behalf of the Fund as are customarily exercised by the board of directors of a registered investment company organized as a corporation. The officers of the Fund conduct and supervise the daily business operations of the Fund.

The trustees of the Board (each, a "Trustee") are not required to contribute to the capital of the Fund or to hold interests therein. A majority of Trustees of the Board are not "interested persons" (as defined in the Investment Company Act) of the Fund (collectively, the "Independent Trustees").

The identity of Trustees of the Board and officers of the Fund, and their brief biographical information, including their addresses, their year of birth and descriptions of their principal occupations during the past five years is set forth below.

The Trustees serve on the Board for terms of indefinite duration. A Trustee's position in that capacity will terminate if the Trustee is removed or resigns or, among other events, upon the Trustee's death, incapacity, retirement or bankruptcy. A Trustee may resign upon written notice to the other Trustees of the Fund, and may be removed either by (i) the vote of at least two-thirds of the Trustees of the Fund not subject to the removal vote or (ii) the vote of Common Shareholders holding not less than two-thirds of the total number of votes eligible to be cast by all Common Shareholders of the Fund. In the event of any vacancy in the position of a Trustee, the remaining Trustees of the Fund may appoint an individual to serve as a Trustee so long as immediately after the appointment at least two-thirds of the Trustees of the Fund then serving have been elected by the Common Shareholders of the Fund. The Board may call a meeting of the Common Shareholders to fill any vacancy in the position of a Trustee of the Fund, and must do so if the Trustees who were elected by the Common Shareholders cease to constitute a majority of the Trustees then serving on the Board.

The Board believes that each of the Trustees' experience, qualifications, attributes and skills on an individual basis and in combination with those of the other Trustees lead to the conclusion that each Trustee should serve in such capacity. Among the attributes common to all Trustees is the ability to review critically, evaluate, question and discuss information provided to them, to interact effectively with the other Trustees, the Adviser, other service providers, counsel and the independent registered public accounting firm, and to exercise effective business judgment in the performance of their duties as Trustees. A Trustee's ability to perform his duties effectively may have been attained through the Trustee's business, consulting, and public service work; experience as a board member of non-profit entities or other organizations; education or professional training; and/or other life experiences. In addition to these shared characteristics, set forth below is a brief discussion of the specific experience, qualifications, attributes or skills of each Trustee. Specific details regarding each Trustee's principal occupations during the past five years are included in the tables below. See "Board of Trustees and Officers — Independent Trustees" and "Board of Trustees and Officers — Interested Trustees and Officers." The address of each Trustee and Officer of the Fund is c/o Bow River Advisers, LLC, 205 Detroit Street, Suite 800, Denver, Colorado 80206.

INDEPENDENT TRUSTEES

NAME AND YEAR OF BIRTH	POSITION(S) WITH THE FUND	LENGTH OF TIME SERVICED*	PRINCIPAL OCCUPATION(S) DURING PAST 5 YEARS	PORTFOLIOS IN FUND COMPLEX OVERSEEN BY TRUSTEE	OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS** HELD BY TRUSTEE
Jeremy May (1970)	Chairman and Trustee	Since Inception	Founder and CEO of Paralel Technologies, LLC (a fintech firm) and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Paralel Advisors (a registered investment adviser) and Paralel Distributors (a registered broker/dealer) (Since October 2019); Previously, President and Director of ALPS Fund Services, Inc., ALPS Distributors, Inc., and ALPS Portfolio Solutions Distributor, Inc., Executive Vice President and Director of ALPS Holdings, Inc. and ALPS Advisors, Inc. (1995 to 2019).	1	Russell Investment Company and Russell Investment Funds (40 funds) (since 2021); New Age Alpha ETF Trust (2020 to 2022); Reaves Utility Income Fund (2009 to 2021); ALPS Series Trust (9 funds) (2012 to 2021); RiverNorth Opportunities Fund, Inc. (2018 to 2019).
Michael Imhoff (1963)	Trustee	Since Inception	Managing Director of Stifel (full service investment firm) (Since 2015); Previously, other roles at Stifel (Since 1985).	1	N/A
Jack Swift (1973)	Trustee	Since Inception	President and Chief Revenue Officer of TIFIN (a financial technology company) (Since 2019); Previously, Partner and President of Crestone Capital, LLC (investment management and wealth advisory firm) (2016 to 2019); Co-Founder, Managing Director, Head of Global Business Development of Pacific Current Group (a boutique asset management firm) (2010 to 2016).	1	Member Of The Board Of Advisors at Magnifi (Since 2020); Chairman of the Board at Clout (Since 2020).

^{*} Each Trustee serves an indefinite term, until his successor is elected.

^{**} Includes any company with a class of securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), or subject to the requirements of Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act or any company registered under the Investment Company Act.

INTERESTED TRUSTEE AND OFFICERS

NAME	POSITION(S) WITH THE FUND	LENGTH OF TIME SERVICED*	PRINCIPAL OCCUPATION(S) DURING PAST 5 YEARS	PORTFOLIOS IN FUND COMPLEX OVERSEEN BY TRUSTEE	OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS** HELD BY TRUSTEE
Jeremy Held*** (1974)	Trustee and President	Since Inception	Managing Director, Bow River Advisers (since 2023); Managing Director, Bow River Capital (Since 2019); Previously, Chief Investment Officer, ALPS Advisors, Inc. (investment management company) (2007 to 2019.	1	Director, Principal Real Estate Income Fund (Since 2017)
Rich Wham (1964)	Vice President	Since Inception	Chairman, Bow River Capital (Since 2017); Previously, Partner, Westfield Company Inc. (real estate company) (2015 to 2017).	1	N/A
Jane Ingalls (1966)	Vice President and Secretary	Since Inception	Chief Operating Officer, Bow River Advisers (since 2023); Chief Operating Officer (since 2022); Managing Director and Chief of Staff, Bow River Capital (2020 to 2022); Previously, Founder and President, Artemis Consulting Group (2007 to 2020).	1	N/A
Derek Mullins (1973)	Treasurer	Since Inception	Managing Partner, PINE Advisor Solutions (provider of outsourced non-investment fund services) (since 2018).	1	N/A
John Blue (1977)	Chief Compliance Officer	Since Inception	Managing Partner, PINE Advisor Solutions (provider of outsourced non-investment fund services) (Since 2018); Chief Compliance Officer, Kelly Strategic Management, LLC (Since 2022).	1	N/A
Marcie McVeigh (1979)	Assistant Treasurer	Since Inception	Director of CFO Services, PINE Advisor Solutions (provider of outsourced non-investment fund services) (Since 2020); Assistant Vice President and Performance Measurement Manager at Brown Brothers Harriman (financial services firm) (2019 to 2020); Sr. Financial Reporting Specialist at American Century Investments (investment management firm) (2011 to 2018).	1	N/A

NAME	POSITION(S) WITH THE FUND	LENGTH OF TIME SERVICED*	PRINCIPAL OCCUPATION(S) DURING PAST 5 YEARS	FUND COMPLEX OVERSEEN BY TRUSTEE	OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS** HELD BY TRUSTEE
James Kerr	Assistant	Since	Chief Compliance Officer, Bow	1	N/A
(1983)	Secretary	March 2021	River Advisers (since 2023);		
			Chief Compliance Officer &		
			General Counsel, Bow River		
			Capital (since 2021); Previously,		
			Senior Legal Counsel (2021) and		
			Legal Counsel (2018 to 2021),		
			Janus Henderson Investors		
			U.S.; Assistant Secretary, Janus		
			Detroit Street Trust (ETF Trust)		
			and Assistant Secretary, Clayton		
			Street Trust (VIT Trust) (2018 to		
			2021).		

PORTFOLIOS IN

Leadership Structure and Oversight Responsibilities

Overall responsibility for oversight of the Fund rests with the Board. The Fund has engaged the Adviser to manage the Fund on a day-to-day basis. The Board is responsible for overseeing the Adviser, Investment Consultant and other service providers in the operations of the Fund in accordance with the provisions of the Investment Company Act, applicable provisions of state and other laws and the Declaration of Trust. The Board is currently composed of four members, three of whom are Independent Trustees. The Board will hold regularly scheduled meetings four times each year. In addition, the Board may hold special in-person or telephonic meetings or informal conference calls to discuss specific matters that may arise or require action between regular meetings. The Independent Trustees have also engaged independent legal counsel to assist them in performing their oversight responsibility. The Independent Trustees meet with their independent legal counsel in person prior to and/or during each quarterly board meeting. As described below, the Board has established an audit committee (the "Audit Committee") and a nominating committee (the "Nominating Committee") and may establish ad hoc committees or working groups from time to time to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities.

The Board has appointed Jeremy May, an Independent Trustee, to serve in the role of Chairman. The Chairman's role is to preside at all meetings of the Board and to act as liaison with the Adviser, Investment Consultant, other service providers, counsel and other Trustees generally between meetings. The Chairman serves as a key point person for dealings between management and the Trustees. The Chairman may also perform such other functions as may be delegated by the Board from time to time. The Board has determined that the Board's leadership structure is appropriate because it allows the Board to exercise informed and independent judgment over matters under its purview and it allocates areas of responsibility among committees of Trustees and the full Board in a manner that enhances effective oversight.

The Fund is subject to a number of risks, including investment, compliance, operational and valuation risks, among others. Risk oversight forms part of the Board's general oversight of the Fund and will be addressed as part of various Board and committee activities. Day-to-day risk management functions are subsumed within the responsibilities of the Adviser, Investment Consultant, and other service providers (depending on the nature of the risk), which carry out the Fund's investment management and business affairs. The Adviser, Investment Consultant and other service providers employ a variety of processes, procedures and controls to identify various events or circumstances that give rise to risks, to lessen the probability of their occurrence and/or to mitigate the effects of such events or circumstances if they do occur. Each of the Adviser, Investment Consultant and other service providers has their own independent interests in risk management, and their policies and methods of risk management will depend on their functions and business models. The Board recognizes that it is not possible to identify all of the risks that may affect the Fund or to develop processes and controls to eliminate or mitigate their occurrence or effects. The Board will require senior officers of the Fund, including the President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Compliance Officer, and the Adviser and Investment

Each Trustee serves an indefinite term, until his successor is elected.

^{**} Includes any company with a class of securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act or subject to the requirements of Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act or any company registered under the Investment Company Act.

^{***} Mr. Held is an "interested person" (as that term is defined in the 1940 Act) because of his affiliations with the Adviser.

Consultant, to report to the full Board on a variety of matters at regular and special meetings of the Board, including matters relating to risk management. The Board and the Audit Committee will also receive regular reports from the Fund's independent registered public accounting firm on internal control and financial reporting matters. The Board will also receive reports from certain of the Fund's other primary service providers on a periodic or regular basis, including the Fund's custodian, distributor, sub-administrator and securities lending counterparty, as applicable. The Board may, at any time and in its discretion, change the manner in which it conducts risk oversight.

Committees of the Board of Trustees

Audit Committee

The Board has formed an Audit Committee that is responsible for overseeing the Fund's accounting and financial reporting policies and practices, its internal controls, and, as appropriate, the internal controls of certain service providers; overseeing the quality and objectivity of the Fund's financial statements and the independent audit of those financial statements; and acting as a liaison between the Fund's independent auditors and the full Board. In performing its responsibilities, the Audit Committee will select and recommend annually to the entire Board a firm of independent certified public accountants to audit the books and records of the Fund for the ensuing year, and will review with the firm the scope and results of each audit. The Audit Committee currently consists of each of the Fund's Independent Trustees. The Audit Committee has selected Jeremy May to serve in the role as Chairman of the Audit Committee. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, the Audit Committee held three meetings.

Nominating Committee

The Board has formed a Nominating Committee that is responsible for selecting and nominating persons to serve as Trustees of the Fund. The Nominating Committee is responsible for both nominating candidates to be appointed by the Board to fill vacancies and for nominating candidates to be presented to Common Shareholders for election. In performing its responsibilities, the Nominating Committee will consider candidates recommended by management of the Fund and by Common Shareholders and evaluate them both in a similar manner, as long as the recommendation submitted by a Common Shareholder includes at a minimum: the name, address and telephone number of the recommending Common Shareholder and information concerning the Common Shareholder's interests in the Fund in sufficient detail to establish that the Common Shareholder held Shares on the relevant record date; and the name, address and telephone number of the recommended nominee and information concerning the recommended nominee's education, professional experience, and other information that might assist the Nominating Committee in evaluating the recommended nominee's qualifications to serve as a trustee. The Nominating Committee may solicit candidates to serve as trustees from any source it deems appropriate. With the Board's prior approval, the Nominating Committee may employ and compensate counsel, consultants or advisers to assist it in discharging its responsibilities. The Nominating Committee currently consists of each of the Fund's Independent Trustees. The Nominating Committee has selected Michael Imhoff to serve in the role as Chairman of the Nominating Committee. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, the Nominating Committee held one meeting.

Trustee Ownership of Securities

DOLLAR RANGE OF EQUITY SECURITIES IN THE FUND	AGGREGATE DOLLAR RANGE OF EQUITY SECURITIES IN ALL REGISTERED INVESTMENT COMPANIES OVERSEEN BY MANAGER IN FAMILY OF INVESTMENT COMPANIES
Over \$100,000	Over \$100,000
Over \$100,000	Over \$100,000
None	None
Over \$100,000	Over \$100,000
	OF EQUITY SECURITIES IN THE FUND Over \$100,000 Over \$100,000 None

^{*} As of December 31, 2022

As of July 3, 2023, the Fund's Trustees and officers as a group owned beneficially less than one percent of the outstanding shares of the Fund.

Independent Trustee Ownership of Securities

None of the Independent Trustees (or their immediate family members) owned securities of the Adviser, Investment Consultant, or of an entity (other than pooled investment vehicles) controlling, controlled by or under common control with the Adviser or Investment Consultant.

Trustee Compensation

Effective January 1, 2023, the Fund pays each Independent Trustee a retainer of \$40,000 per year in consideration of the services rendered by the Independent Trustees. Prior to January 1, 2023, the Fund paid each Independent Trustee a retainer of \$30,000 per year. In addition, the Fund pays an additional retainer of \$2,500 per year to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and to the Chairman of the Nominating Committee. Trustees that are interested persons will not be compensated by the Fund. The Trustees do not receive any pension or retirement benefits.

CODES OF ETHICS

The Fund, the Adviser and Investment Consultant have each adopted a code of ethics pursuant to Rule 17j-1 of the Investment Company Act, which is designed to prevent affiliated persons of the Fund, the Adviser and Investment Consultant from engaging in deceptive, manipulative, or fraudulent activities in connection with securities held or to be acquired by the Fund. The codes of ethics permit persons subject to them to invest in securities, including securities that may be held or purchased by the Fund, subject to a number of restrictions and controls. Compliance with the codes of ethics is carefully monitored and enforced.

The codes of ethics are included as exhibits to the Fund's registration statement filed with the SEC. The codes of ethics are available on the EDGAR database on the SEC's Internet site at http://www.sec.gov, and may be obtained after paying a duplicating fee, by electronic request at the following E-mail address: publicinfo@sec.gov.

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AND OTHER SERVICES

The Adviser

Effective at the close of business on March 31, 2023, Bow River Asset Management LLC ("BRAM") transferred its rights and obligations under the investment management agreement with the Fund to Bow River Advisers, LLC, (the "Adviser"), its majority-owned subsidiary. The Adviser, located at 205 Detroit Street, Suite 800, Denver, Colorado, is responsible for determining and implementing the Fund's overall investment strategy, including direct investments. The Adviser was formed in 2023 and specializes in providing evergreen private market investment solutions to registered investment companies. The Adviser is an investment adviser registered with the SEC under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended (the "Advisers Act"). Subject to the general supervision of the Board, and in accordance with the investment objective, policies, and restrictions of the Fund, the Adviser is responsible for the management and operation of the Fund and the investment of the Fund's assets. The Adviser provides such services to the Fund pursuant to the investment management agreement (the "Investment Management Agreement"), utilizing the personnel and resources of BRAM. Such utilization is subject to an Intercompany Services Agreement between the Adviser and BRAM; whereby the Adviser pays BRAM the actual and allocated costs of BRAM providing such personnel and resources.

The Investment Management Agreement became effective as of the Commencement of Operations and continued in effect for an initial two-year term. Thereafter, the Investment Management Agreement is continuing in effect from year to year provided such continuance is specifically approved at least annually by (i) the vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund, or a majority of the Board, and (ii) the vote of a majority of the Independent Trustees of the Fund, cast in person at a meeting called for the purpose of voting on such approval. See "VOTING" in the Prospectus. The Investment Management Agreement will terminate automatically if assigned (as defined in the Investment Company Act) and is terminable at any time without penalty upon 60 days' written notice to the Fund by either the Board or the Adviser. A discussion regarding the basis for the Board's approval of the Investment Management Agreement is available in the Fund's Semi-Annual Report, dated September 30, 2022.

The Investment Management Agreement provides that, in the absence of willful misfeasance, bad faith, reckless disregard or gross negligence of its obligations to the Fund, the Adviser and any partner, director, officer or employee of the Adviser, or any of their affiliates, executors, heirs, assigns, successors or other legal representatives, will not be liable for any error of judgment, for any mistake of law or for any act or omission by the person in connection with the performance of services to the Fund. The Investment Management Agreement also provides for indemnification, to the fullest extent permitted by law, by the Fund, of the Adviser, or any partner, director, officer or employee of the Adviser, and any of their affiliates, executors, heirs, assigns, successors or other legal representatives, against any liability or expense to which the person may be liable that arises in connection with the performance of services to the Fund, so long as the liability or expense is not incurred by reason of the person's willful misfeasance or gross negligence of its obligations to the Fund. Such indemnification includes losses sustained by the Adviser or its affiliates as an indemnitor under any sub-servicing or other agreement entered into by the Adviser for the benefit of the Fund to the extent that such losses relate to the Fund and the indemnity giving rise to the losses is not broader than that granted by the Fund to the Adviser or its affiliates pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement. The Fund has the right to consent before the Adviser settles or consents to the settlement of a claim involving such indemnitor losses (but such consent right will not affect the Adviser's entitlement to indemnification).

The Fund pays the Adviser an investment management fee (the "Investment Management Fee") in consideration of the advisory services provided by the Adviser to the Fund. Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, the Fund will pay a monthly Investment Management Fee equal to 1.75% on an annualized basis of the Fund's average daily Managed Assets during such period. "Managed Assets" means the total assets of the Fund (including any assets attributable to money borrowed for investment purposes) minus the sum of the Fund's accrued liabilities (other than money borrowed for investment purposes). The Investment Management Fee is paid to the Adviser out of the Fund's assets and decreases the net profits or increases the net losses of the Fund. The Investment Management Fee will be computed as of the last day of each month.

The Investment Management Fee is paid to the Adviser before giving effect to any repurchase of Shares in the Fund effective as of that date and will decrease the net profits or increase the net losses of the Fund that are credited to its Common Shareholders.

The Adviser may make payments from its resources, which include a portion of the Investment Management Fee, to brokers or dealers that assist in the distribution of Shares, including brokers or dealers that may be affiliated with the Adviser.

During the fiscal period from January 4, 2021 (Commencement of Operations) to March 31, 2021, the Investment Management Fee paid by the Fund to BRAM was \$142,203.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2022, the Investment Management Fee paid by the Fund to BRAM was \$2,734,235.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, the Investment Management Fee paid by the Fund to BRAM was \$4,916,262.

In addition, the Adviser has entered into an amended and restated expense limitation and reimbursement agreement (the "Expense Limitation Agreement") with the Fund, whereby the Adviser has agreed to waive fees that it would otherwise be paid, and/or to assume expenses of the Fund (a "Waiver"), if required to ensure the Fund's aggregate monthly ordinary operating expenses, excluding certain "Specified Expenses" listed below, borne by the Fund in respect of each Class of Shares to an amount not to exceed 0.50%, on an annualized basis, of the Fund's month-end net assets (the "Expense Cap") through July 31, 2024. The Expense Limitation and Reimbursement Agreement automatically renews for consecutive twelve-month terms, provided that such continuance is specifically approved at least annually by a majority of the Trustees. The Expense Limitation Agreement may be terminated by the Fund's Board of Trustees upon thirty days' written notice to the Adviser.

If the Fund's aggregate monthly ordinary operating expenses, exclusive of the Specified Expenses, in respect of any Class of Shares for any month exceed the Expense Cap applicable to that Class of Shares, the Adviser will waive its Investment Management Fee and/or reimburse the Fund for expenses to the extent necessary to eliminate such excess. The Adviser may also directly pay expenses on behalf of the Fund and waive reimbursement under the Expense Limitation Agreement. To the extent that the Adviser waives its Investment Management Fee and/or reimburses expenses, the Adviser may, for a period not to exceed three years from the date on which a Waiver is made, recoup amounts waived or assumed, provided it is able to effect such recoupment without causing the Fund's expense ratio (after recoupment) to exceed the lesser of (a) the expense limit in effect at the time of the waiver, and (b) the expense limit in effect at the time of the recoupment.

Specified Expenses that are not covered by the Expense Limitation Agreement and are therefore borne by shareholders of the Fund include: (i) the Investment Management Fee; (ii) all fees and expenses of Fund Investments (including any Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses); (iii) transactional costs, including legal costs and brokerage commissions, associated with the acquisition and disposition of Private Market Assets and other investments; (iv) interest payments incurred on borrowing by the Fund; (v) fees and expenses incurred in connection with a credit facility, if any, obtained by the Fund; (vi) distribution and shareholder servicing fees, as applicable; (vii) taxes; and (viii) extraordinary expenses resulting from events and transactions that are distinguished by their unusual nature and by the infrequency of their occurrence, including, without limitation, costs incurred in connection with any claim, litigation, arbitration, mediation, government investigation or similar proceeding, indemnification expenses, and expenses in connection with holding and/or soliciting proxies for all annual and other meetings of Common Shareholders).

During the fiscal period from January 4, 2021 (Commencement of Operations) to March 31, 2021, the amount of the fees waived or expenses reimbursed by BRAM was \$212,610.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2022, the amount of the fees waived or expenses reimbursed by BRAM was \$257,589.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, the amount of the fees recouped by BRAM was \$192,185.

Investment Consultant

Aksia CA LLC ("Aksia CA"), located at 12760 High Bluff Drive, Suite 120, San Diego, CA 92130, is the Investment Consultant to the Fund and assists the Adviser with sourcing, evaluating and selecting investments for the Fund's portfolio. As the Investment Consultant, Aksia CA only recommends investments to the Adviser and has no involvement in investment decisions, any related negotiations, or the finalization of any investment. The Investment Consultant,

formed in 2011, is a private, independently-owned firm that provides asset management services to state and local pension plans, endowments and foundations. The Investment Consultant is an investment adviser registered with the SEC under the Advisers Act.

The Investment Consultant Agreement became effective as of the Commencement of Operations and continued in effect for an initial two-year term. Thereafter, the Investment Consultant Agreement continues in effect from year to year provided such continuance is specifically approved at least annually by (i) the vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund, or a majority of the Board, and (ii) the vote of a majority of the Independent Trustees of the Fund, cast in person at a meeting called for the purpose of voting on such approval. The Investment Consultant Agreement will terminate automatically if assigned (as defined in the Investment Company Act) and is terminable at any time without penalty upon 60 days' written notice to the Fund by either the Board, the Adviser or the Investment Consultant. A discussion regarding the basis for the Board's approval of the Investment Consultant Agreement is available in the Fund's Semi-Annual Report, dated September 30, 2022.

The Adviser pays the Investment Consultant a fee of 0.375% (on an annualized basis) of the Fund's average daily Managed Assets, in consideration of the services provided by the Investment Consultant to the Fund.

Investment Team — Bow River Advisers

Bow River Advisers has an experienced investment team with significant expertise underwriting and executing private equity investments, managing evergreen private equity strategies and managing registered funds. The Fund's investment team is led by its Co-Founders Jeremy Held and Mike Trihy. (the "Portfolio Managers").

Investment Consultant Team — Aksia CA

Aksia CA is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Aksia. LLC. (All references to Aksia herein refer to Aksia LLC, together with its wholly owned subsidiaries, including Aksia CA (collectively "Aksia"), unless otherwise noted).

Aksia CA is a private markets consultant that advises institutional investors globally, including pension plans, government-related institutions, foundations and endowments. Aksia has 81 investment professionals (as of May 31, 2023) and advises on \$280 billion (AUA) and manages \$24 billion (AUM) of alternative investment assets (as of May 31, 2023).

Aksia has extensive experience in the industry and advises on over \$109 billion (AUA) in private equity assets and over \$78 billion (AUA) in private credit assets (as of May 31, 2023). Aksia has been active in private credit since 2008 and Aksia CA in private equity since 2011. The senior members of Aksia's portfolio advisory team possess an average of over 20 years' experience in the industry, while the portfolio advisory team as a whole averages over a decade (as of May 31, 2023).

Aksia provides its investment consultant services through a team-based approach. Aksia manages its relationships through its investment consultant teams, whereby typically two to three portfolio advisory professionals jointly work with a given client, so the client has multiple touchpoints for ad hoc requests and deliverables, as well as overlapping coverage. In addition the portfolio advisory team has dedicated analysts who participate in conference calls, deliver reports and documentation to clients, and assist with ad hoc projects, as needed.

Beyond the investment consultant team, clients have access to and often develop direct relationships with members of specialized teams, including the investment research and operational due diligence teams, which serve as additional resources to clients. Aksia encourages research teams to get to know clients and their programs, as Aksia believes that the sector heads and senior investment research analysts are a critical component of the advisory process.

Number of Other Accounts Managed and Total Value of Assets by Account Type for Which There is No Performance-Based Fee: Number of Other Accounts and Total Value of Assets for Which Advisory Fee is Performance-Based:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Jeremy Held	0	0	0	0	0	0
Mike Trihy	0	0	0	0	0	0

⁽¹⁾ As of March 31, 2023.

Conflicts of Interest

The Investment Team may manage separate accounts or other pooled investment vehicles that may have materially higher or different fee arrangements than the Fund and may also be subject to performance-based fees. The side-by-side management of these separate accounts and pooled investment vehicles may raise potential conflicts of interest relating to cross-trading and the allocation of investment opportunities. The Adviser has a fiduciary responsibility to manage all client accounts in a fair and equitable manner. The Adviser seeks to provide best execution of all securities transactions and to allocate investments to client accounts in a fair and reasonable manner. To this end, the Adviser has developed policies and procedures designed to mitigate and manage the potential conflicts of interest that may arise from side-by-side management.

Compensation of the Investment Team

A competitive base salary and a performance-based bonus structure are in place for all team members. Members of the Investment Team, analysts, and other associates are paid a competitive base salary and discretionary bonus based on their fiduciary investment responsibilities, performance of the individual, and performance of the firm. The discretionary bonus structure gives the Adviser the ability to remain competitive under current market conditions affecting compensation across the industry. The discretionary bonus may be payable in both cash and equity.

Investment Team Ownership of Securities in the Fund

Name of Investment Team Member:	Dollar Range of Shares Beneficially Owned by Portfolio Management Team Member ⁽¹⁾
Jeremy Held	\$100,001 - \$500,000 \$10,001 - \$50,000

⁽¹⁾ As of March 31, 2023.

PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS AND BROKERAGE ALLOCATION

The Adviser generally selects brokers and dealers to effect transactions on behalf of the Fund in substantially the following manner. When the Adviser is aware that portfolio securities it intends to purchase for the Fund are available from multiple sources, such as multiple alternative trading systems or placement agents, the Adviser will undertake best efforts to obtain and retain two or more, as it deems appropriate, alternative quotes for such portfolio securities and document why the Adviser selected a source for any resulting purchase.

In selecting brokers and dealers to effect transactions on behalf of the Fund, the Adviser seeks to obtain the best price and execution for the transactions, taking into account factors such as price, size of order, difficulty of execution and operational facilities of a brokerage firm and the firm's risk in positioning a block of securities. As described below, the Adviser does not currently, but may in the future, place orders with brokers that provide research services. Such transactions shall comply with the safe harbor under Section 28(e) of the Exchange Act, with respect to the receipt of such services.

Consistent with the principle of seeking best price and execution, the Adviser may place brokerage orders with brokers that provide the Fund and the Adviser with supplemental research, market and statistical information, including advice as to the value of securities, the advisability of investing in, purchasing or selling securities, and the availability of securities or purchasers or sellers of securities, and furnishing analyses and reports concerning issuers, industries, securities, economic factors and trends, portfolio strategy and the performance of accounts.

In most instances, the Fund will purchase interests in a Portfolio Fund directly from the Portfolio Fund, and such purchases by the Fund may be, but are generally not, subject to transaction expenses. Nevertheless, the Fund anticipates that some of its portfolio transactions (including investments in Portfolio Funds by the Fund) may be subject to expenses. Given the private equity focus of a majority of the Portfolio Funds, significant brokerage commissions are not anticipated to be paid by such funds. During the fiscal period from January 4, 2021 (Commencement of Operations) to March 31, 2021, the Fund paid \$2,409 in brokerage commissions. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, the Fund paid \$0 in brokerage commissions.

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM; LEGAL COUNSEL

Cohen & Company, Ltd., located at 1350 Euclid Ave., Suite 800, Cleveland, OH 44115, serves as the independent registered public accounting firm for the Fund.

Faegre Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP, One Logan Square, Suite 2000, Philadelphia, PA 19103-6996, serves as legal counsel to the Fund and the Independent Trustees of the Fund.

CUSTODIAN

UMB Bank, n.a. (the "Custodian") serves as the primary custodian of the assets of the Fund and may maintain custody of such assets with U.S. and non-U.S. sub-custodians (which may be banks and trust companies), securities depositories and clearing agencies in accordance with the requirements of Section 17(f) of the Investment Company Act and the rules thereunder. Assets of the Fund are not held by the Adviser or commingled with the assets of other accounts other than to the extent that securities are held in the name of the Custodian or U.S. or non-U.S. sub-custodians in a securities depository, clearing agency or omnibus customer account of such custodian. The Custodian's principal business address is 1010 Grand Blvd., Kansas City, MO 64106. The Custodian is an affiliate of UMB Fund Services, Inc., which serves as the Fund's Administrator.

CALCULATION OF NET ASSET VALUE

The Fund calculates its net asset value as of the close of regular trading on the New York Stock Exchange on the last business day of each calendar week, each business day for the five business days preceding a repurchase request deadline (at such specific time set by the Board), each date that a Share is offered or repurchased, as of the date of any distribution and at such other times as the Board shall determine (each, a "Determination Date"). In determining its net asset value, the Fund values its investments as of the relevant Determination Date. The net asset value of the Fund equals, unless otherwise noted, the value of the total assets of the Fund, less all of its liabilities, including accrued fees and expenses, each determined as of the relevant Determination Date.

PROXY VOTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Board has delegated responsibility for decisions regarding proxy voting for securities held by the Fund to the Adviser. The Adviser will vote such proxies in accordance with its proxy policies and procedures. Copies of the Adviser's proxy policies and procedures are included as Appendix A to this SAI. The Board will periodically review the Fund's proxy voting record.

The Fund is required to file Form N-PX, with its complete proxy voting record for the twelve months ended June 30, no later than August 31 of each year. The Fund's Form N-PX filing will be available: (i) without charge, upon request, by calling the Fund at (888) 330-3350 or (ii) by visiting the SEC's website at www.sec.gov.

CONTROL PERSONS AND PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

As of July 3, 2023, the following persons were the only persons who were record owners (or to the knowledge of the Fund, beneficial owners) of 5% or more of the Shares.

Name and Address	Percentage of Ownership
Weichert Enterprise, LLC	7.28% of Class I Shares
1625 State Route 10	
Morris Plains, NJ 07950	
Charles Schwab & Co., Inc.	8.59% of Class I Shares
2740 N. Mayfair Rd.	
Springfield, MO 65803	
SEI Private Trust Company	18.42% of Class II Shares
C/O First Interstate Bank	
1 Freedom Valley Drive	
Oaks, PA 19456	
First Premier Bank	31.05% of Class II Shares
6010 S. Minnesota Ave. Suite 208	
Sioux Falls, SD 57108	

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the applicable rules of the SEC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited financial statements and financial highlights included in the annual report to the Fund's shareholders for the fiscal year/period ended March 31, 2023 (the "2023 Annual Report"), together with the report of Cohen & Company, Ltd. on the financial statements and financial highlights included in the Fund's 2023 Annual Report, are incorporated herein.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

A registration statement on Form N-2, including amendments thereto, relating to the Shares offered hereby, has been filed by the Fund with the SEC. The Prospectus and this Statement of Additional Information do not contain all of the information set forth in the registration statement, including any exhibits and schedules thereto. For further information with respect to the Fund and the Shares offered hereby, reference is made to the registration statement. A copy of the registration statement may be reviewed and copied on the EDGAR database on the SEC's website at *sec.gov*. Prospective investors can also request copies of these materials, upon payment of a duplicating fee, by electronic request at the SEC's e-mail address (publicinfo@sec.gov).

APPENDIX A

Bow River Asset Management, LLC Bow River Advisers, LLC

Policy on Proxy Voting

Spring 2023

This Policy on Proxy Voting ("Policy") is the property of Bow River Capital Asset Management LLC and Bow River Advisers, LLC, ("Bow River Capital" or the "Firm"). Electronic copies of this Policy must be deleted and hardcopies must be returned to the Firm if an individual's association with the Firm terminates for any reason.

The policies and procedures set forth herein supersede previous manuals, policies, and procedures.

© 2023 Bow River Asset Management LLC. All rights reserved.

INTRODUCTION

This Policy is intended to establish the rules and requirements surrounding the voting of proxies at Bow River Capital.

All Employees must abide by this Policy. Employees should speak to the CCO or, in his absence, the CEO, CFO or COO regarding any questions about this Policy, or if he or she feels that the Policy should be changed or updated.

Capitalized terms are defined in the Definitions section of this Policy.

DEFINITIONS

The following defined terms are used throughout this Manual. Other capitalized terms are defined within specific sections of the Manual.

Employees Bow River Capital's officers, directors, principals, and employees.

Bow River Capital...... Bow River Asset Management, LLC, and/or Bow River Advisers, LLC, each an

investment adviser registered with the SEC.

CCO James D. Kerr, Bow River Capital's Chief Compliance Officer and Senior Counsel.

CEO Blair E. Richardson, Bow River Capital's Chief Executive Officer.

CFO Jamison Davis, Bow River Capital's Chief Financial Officer.

COO Jane Ingalls, Bow River Capital's Chief Operating Officer.

Clients..... Funds and co-investment vehicles for which Bow River Capital provides investment

advisory services. The underlying Investors in pooled investment vehicles advised

by Bow River Capital are not Clients of Bow River Capital.

Investor..... A limited partner or shareholder in a Bow River Capital Client (i.e., pooled investment

vehicle advised by Bow River Capital or an affiliate).

IC Act The Investment Company Act of 1940.

Policy The Bow River Capital Proxy Voting Policy and Procedures.

Proxy Committee...... A majority quorum of the CEO, CCO, CFO, COO and the Managing

Director(s) responsible for the Client conducting a proxy vote.

Security The SEC defines the term "Security" broadly to include stocks, bonds, certificates

of deposit, options, interests in Private Placements, futures contracts on other securities, participations in profit-sharing agreements, and interests in oil, gas, or other mineral royalties or leases, among other things. "Security" is also defined to include any instrument commonly known as a security. Any questions about whether an instrument is a security for purposes of the Federal securities laws should be

directed to the CCO.

SEC..... The Securities and Exchange Commission.

Securities Act The Securities Act of 1933.

PROXY VOTING

Background

Investment advisers are fiduciaries that owe their undivided loyalty to their clients. Investment advisers are trusted to represent clients' interests in many matters, and advisers must hold themselves to the highest standard of fairness in all such matters. As part of its responsibilities to the Funds, Bow River Capital votes proxies for Securities held in the Funds.

The federal securities laws do not specifically address how an adviser must exercise its proxy voting authority for its clients. Under the Advisers Act, however, an adviser is a fiduciary that owes each of its clients a duty of care and loyalty with respect to all services undertaken on the client's behalf, including proxy voting. The duty of care requires an adviser with proxy voting authority to monitor corporate events and to vote the proxies in the best interests of the client, without placing the adviser's own interests ahead of the client.

Rule 206(4)-6 under the Advisers Act requires each registered investment adviser that exercises proxy voting authority with respect to client securities to:

- Adopt and implement written policies and procedures reasonably designed to ensure that the adviser votes
 client securities in the clients' best interests. Such policies and procedures must address the manner in
 which the adviser will resolve material conflicts of interest that can arise during the proxy voting process;
- Disclose to clients how they may obtain information from the adviser about how the adviser voted with respect to their securities; and
- Describe to clients the adviser's proxy voting policies and procedures and, upon request, furnish a copy of the policies and procedures.

Additionally, paragraph (c)(2) of Rule 204-2 imposes additional recordkeeping requirements on investment advisers that execute proxy voting authority, as described in the *Maintenance of Books and Records* section of the Bow River Capital Compliance Manual.

The Advisers Act lacks specific guidance regarding an adviser's duty to direct clients' participation in class actions. However, many investment advisers adopt policies and procedures regarding class actions.

Risks

In developing these policies and procedures, Bow River Capital considered numerous risks associated with the proxy voting process. This analysis includes risks such as:

- Bow River Capital lacks written proxy voting policies and procedures;
- Proxies are not identified and processed in a timely manner;
- Proxies are not voted in Clients' best interests;
- Conflicts of interest between Bow River Capital and a Client are not identified or resolved appropriately;
- Third-party proxy voting services do not vote proxies according to Bow River Capital's instructions and in Clients' and Investor's best interests; and
- Proxy voting records, Investor's requests for proxy voting information, and Bow River Capital's responses to such requests, are not properly maintained;

Bow River Capital has established the following guidelines as an attempt to mitigate these risks.

Policies and Procedures

Private Fund Clients advised by Bow River Asset Management, LLC, invest in non-public companies or real property, which assets typically do not issue proxies. The Bow River Capital Evergreen Fund ("Fund"), managed by Bow River Advisers, LLC, may from time to time receive a proxy solicitation (typically related to publicly traded Securities comprising the liquid asset portion of its portfolio). Upon receipt of a proxy voting solicitation, Bow River Capital will vote each proxy in accordance with its fiduciary duty to its Client. Proxies are assets of Bow River Capital's Clients that must be voted with diligence, care, and loyalty. Bow River Capital will generally seek to vote proxies in a way that maximizes the value of Clients' assets. However, Bow River Capital does not abide by any specific proxy voting instructions conveyed by an Investor with respect to the Private Funds' Securities.

With respect to its private fund Clients or investments in private companies, action taken by Bow River Capital via shareholder consent (or similar instrument) or by Employees' service on a portfolio company board of directors do not constitute proxy voting activity subject to this policy. However, Bow River Capital will perform such services in keeping with its core fiduciary obligations to its clients.

PROXY ADMINISTRATION

The Proxy Committee has developed this Policy and oversees the voting process for the Clients. Upon receipt, all proxy voting requests must be immediately forwarded to the members of the Proxy Committee. The Proxy Committee analyzes each proxy request on a case-by-case basis. Bow River Capital does not utilize a third-party proxy advisory service and, as a result, in exercising its voting authority, the Proxy Committee relies upon the firm's own fundamental research, which may incorporate independent research provided by outside groups, and information presented by company managements and shareholder groups. Bow River Capital may cast different votes at the same shareholder meeting, where doing so is in the best interests of each voting Client. The Proxy Committee shall document in writing its rationale with respect to each proxy vote cast.

Practicalities and costs involved with international investing may make it impossible at times, and at other times disadvantageous, to vote proxies in every instance. For example, Bow River Capital might refrain from voting if a Bow River Capital Employee is required to appear in person at a shareholder meeting or if the exercise of voting rights results in the imposition of trading or other ownership restrictions.

FIDUCIARY CONSIDERATIONS

Bow River Capital's decisions with respect to proxy issues are made in light of the anticipated impact of the issue on the desirability of the Client's investment in the Security. Proxies are voted solely in the interests of the Client and Bow River Capital Fund shareholders or investors.

MONITORING AND RESOLVING CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Proxy Committee is also responsible for monitoring and resolving possible conflicts between the interests of Bow River Capital and those of its Clients with respect to proxy voting. The firm has adopted safeguards to ensure that its voting of proxies is not influenced by interests other than those of the Fund shareholders and Clients. When considering membership for the Proxy Committee, it was determined to be in the best interest of the Fund and Clients not to include individuals whose primary duties relate to client relationship management, marketing, or sales.

The Proxy Committee also assesses whether any business or other relationships between Bow River Capital and a portfolio company could have influenced a proxy vote. Issues raising possible conflicts of interest are referred to designated members of the Proxy Committee for immediate resolution prior to the time the firm's vote is cast. With respect to personal conflicts of interest, Bow River Capital's Code of Ethics requires all Employees to avoid placing themselves in a "compromising position" where their interests may conflict with those of the firm's Clients and restricts their ability to engage in certain outside business activities. Proxy Committee members with a personal conflict of interest regarding a particular proxy vote must recuse themselves and not participate in the voting decisions with respect to that proxy. The Proxy Committee may seek the advice of counsel or other third-party consultants to address conflicts, as necessary.

PROXY VOTE FILINGS

All Funds registered under the IC Act, regardless of their fiscal years, must file with the SEC by August 31, their proxy voting records (or confirm no proxy votes were cast) for the most recent 12-month period ended June 30.

DISCLOSURES TO INVESTORS, PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS AND THIRD PARTIES

Bow River Asset Management, LLC includes a description of its policies and procedures regarding proxy voting in Part 2 of Form ADV. In addition, Investors can contact the CCO to obtain a copy of these policies and procedures and information about how Bow River Capital voted with respect to its Funds.

Any request for information about proxy voting should be promptly forwarded to the CCO, who will respond to any such requests.

As a matter of policy, Bow River Capital does not disclose how it expects to vote on upcoming proxies.

Submission Data File

General Information			
Form Type*	N-PX		
Contact Name	EdgarAgents		
Contact Phone	732-780-5036		
Filer File Number			
Filer CIK*	0001810256 (Bow River Capital Evergreen Fund)		
Filer CCC*	*****		
Confirming Copy	No		
Notify via Website only	No		
Return Copy	No		
Investment Company Type	Form N-2 Filer (Closed-End Investment Company)		
SROS*	NONE		
Period*	06-30-2023		
	(End General Information)		

Document Information			
File Count*	2		
Document Name 1*	ea158585_npx.htm		
Document Type 1*	N-PX		
Document Description 1	N-PX		
Document Name 2*	ea158585_cover.htm		
Document Type 2*	COVER		
Document Description 2	COVER		
(End Document Information)			

Notifications		
Notify via Website only	No	
E-mail 1	filings@edgaragents.com	
(End Notifications)		

ea158585_npx.htm	Form Type: N-PX	Page 1
Edgar Agents LLC	Bow River Capital Evergreen Fund	07/26/2023 02:29 PM

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, DC 20549

FORM N-PX

ANNUAL REPORT OF PROXY VOTING RECORD OF REGISTERED MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT COMPANY

Investment Company Act file number 811-23566

Bow River Capital Evergreen Fund (Exact name of registrant as specified in charter)

205 Detroit Street, Suite 800

<u>Denver, Colorado 80206</u>

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip code)

Jeremy Held
Bow River Advisers, LLC
205 Detroit Street, Suite 800
Denver, Colorado 80206
(Name and address of agent for service)

Copies to:

Joshua B. Deringer, Esq. Faegre Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP One Logan Square, Ste. 2000 Philadelphia, PA 19103-6996 215-988-2700

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (303) 861-8466

Date of fiscal year end: March 31

Date of reporting period: <u>July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2023</u>

ea158585_npx.htm	Form Type: N-PX	Page 2
Edgar Agents LLC	Bow River Capital Evergreen Fund	07/26/2023 02:29 PM

Item 1. Proxy Voting Record

There were no matters relating to a portfolio security considered at any shareholder meeting held during the period covered by this report on Form N-PX with respect to which the Fund was entitled to vote.

ea158585_npx.htm	Form Type: N-PX	Page 3
Edgar Agents LLC	Bow River Capital Evergreen Fund	07/26/2023 02:29 PM

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Investment Company Act of 1940, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

(Registrant): Bow River Capital Evergreen Fund

By (Signature and Title): /s/ Jeremy Held

Jeremy Held, Trustee and President

Date: 7/26/2023

ea158585_cover.htm	Form Type: COVER	Page 1
Edgar Agents LLC	Bow River Capital Evergreen Fund	07/26/2023 02:29 PM

UMB FUND SERVICES, INC. 235 W Galena Street Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53212 (414) 299-2000

Securities and Exchange Commission 100 F. Street, N.E. Washington, D.C. 20549

Re: Bow River Capital Evergreen Fund

Registration No: 333-237941; 811-23566

Filing Pursuant to Rule 30b1-4 under the Investment

Company Act of 1940

Dear Sir or Madam:

On behalf of the above-referenced registrant and pursuant to Rule 30b1-4 under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, we hereby file the Form N-PX for the one-year period ended June 30, 2023. Questions regarding this filing may be directed to the undersigned at (414) 299-2000.

Sincerely,		
/s/ John Patterson		
Assistant Vice President		